
 1

Minutes of the Meeting of Management Committee of 
The Interstate Insurance Product Regulation Commission (IIPRC) 

Thursday, December 4, 2008 
 
Management Committee Members in attendance: 
Commissioner Jane Cline, Chair, West Virginia 
Director Hudson, Vice Chair, Ohio 
Commissioner Sean Dilweg, Treasurer, Wisconsin 
Don Roof as a designated representative for Commissioner John Oxendine, Georgia 
Director William Deal, Idaho 
Cindy Donovan as a designated representative for Director Jim Atterholt, Indiana 
Elizabeth Brodeur as a designated representative for Commissioner Nonnie Burnes, Massachusetts 
Joan Moiles as a designated representative for Commissioner Ken Ross, Michigan  
Commissioner Jim Long, North Carolina 
Commissioner Kim Holland, Oklahoma 
Brad Harker as a designated representative for Commissioner Joel Ario, Pennsylvania 
Sara Waitt as a designated representative for Commissioner Mike Geeslin, Texas 
Commissioner Paulette Thabault, Vermont 
Don Beatty as a designated representative for Commissioner Al Gross 
 
Commission Members in attendance: 
Director Linda Hall, Alaska 
Shelly Santo, Hawaii 
Commissioner Susan Voss, Iowa 
Marlyn Burch as a designated representative for Commissioner Sandy Praeger, Kansas 
Commissioner James Donelon, Louisiana 
Elizabeth Román as a designated representative for Commissioner Dorelisse Juarbe Jimenez, Puerto Rico 
Superintendent Joseph Torti, Rhode Island 
Commissioner Kent Michie, Utah 
Commissioner Mike Kreidler, Washington 
Commissioner Ken Vines, Wyoming 
 
Legislative Committee Members in attendance: 
Representative Brian Patrick Kennedy, Rhode Island 
Representative Robert Damron, Kentucky 
Susan Nolan, NCOIL 
Mike Humphreys, NCOIL 
 
Consumer Advisory Committee Members in attendance: 
Brendan Bridgeland, Center for Insurance Research 
Ken Libertoff, Vermont Association for Mental Health 
James Wenzel, Consumer Protection & Public Health Division, Texas 
T. Ryan Wilson, AARP 
 
Industry Advisory Committee Members in attendance: 
Tom English, New York Life 
Dennis Herchel, Massachusetts Mutual 
Miriam Krol, ACLI 
Michael Lovendusky, ACLI 
Cande Olson, Actuarial Resources Corporation 
 
IIPRC Team: 
Karen Schutter, Interim Executive Director 



 2

Sara Bamford, Operations Manager 
Karyn Onyeneho, Administrative Assistant 
Charles Rapacciuolo, Development Consultant  
David Morris, Product Review Consultant  
Alice Fontaine, Actuarial Consultant 
 
NAIC Staff: 
Becky McElduff, Senior Counsel  
Kay Noonan, General Counsel 
Kara Binderup, NAIC Legal 
Julie Fritz, SERFF 
 
Commissioner Jane Cline, West Virginia, called to order the meeting of the Management Committee of the 
Interstate Insurance Product Regulation Commission and asked for a Roll Call.  Commissioner Cline also asked 
that the Legislative Committee, Consumer Advisory Committee and Industry Advisory Committee members 
present identify themselves for the record.   
 
Commissioner Cline provided a brief update on the operations of the Commission Office with regard to the 
recent resignation of Frances Arricale, IIPRC Executive Director.  Commissioner Cline explained that there was 
an emergency meeting of the Management Committee on November 21 for the purpose of discussing the 
transition process.  Commissioner Cline noted that a search committee has been formed to recruit a new IIPRC 
Executive Director; the IIPRC Office will remain operating with the staff and three (3) consultants and Karen 
Schutter has been asked to serve as the Interim Executive Director during the transition.  Commissioner Cline 
thanked the IIPRC Staff for their commitment to the organization and for their continuity and commitment in 
maintaining operational guidelines and structure through this transition process.   
 
Commissioner Cline explained that the IIPRC Bylaws require a Roll Call Vote for the adoption of the reports 
during a meeting in which members of the Commission were also participating via teleconference.    
Commissioner Cline asked the members of the Commission if they would prefer a voice vote instead of a Roll 
Call Vote to adopt the reports during the Commission Meeting.  Commissioner Cline then asked if there was 
any objection to maintaining a voice vote for the adoption of each Agenda item.   
 
Hearing no objections, Commissioner Cline addressed the first item on the Agenda, which was a meeting with 
the Legislative Committee.  Commissioner Cline called on Representative Robert Damron, Kentucky and Chair 
of the Legislative Committee, and Representative Brian Patrick Kennedy from Rhode Island, to provide an 
update on the Legislative Committee’s activities.   
 
Representative Kennedy and noted that the Legislative Committee has been meeting via teleconference and that 
during a conference call prior to  the Fall National Meeting in September there were discussions regarding the 
nominations and appointments of Legislative Committee members.  Representative Kennedy commented that 
appointments had now been confirmed.    Representative Kennedy noted, with regard to the NCOIL Legislative 
Committee Members, that Representative Damron had been re-appointed as Chair of the Committee, 
Representative Kurt Olson, Alaska, has been appointed to represent the Western Zone which was represented by 
Representative Larry Taylor, Texas;   Senator Keith Faber, Ohio, has been appointed to represent the 
Midwestern Zone which was represented by Representative Mike Ripley, Indiana.  Representative Kennedy 
highlighted that Senator Ruth Teichman, Kansas , Senator Ralph Hudgens, Georgia,  and Senator Delores 
Kelley, Maryland have all been re-appointed  to serve as the NCSL members of the Legislative Committee.  
Representative Kennedy noted that there is one (1) new NCSL member appointed from Hawaii, Senator Brian 
Taniguchi.  Representative Kennedy noted that Senator Hudgens had been elected as the new Vice Chair of the 
Committee.  Representative Kennedy stated that prior to the newly elected members, the Legislative Committee 
had unknowingly been in violation of IIPRC Bylaws in which there were two (2) members from the same party 
as Chair and Vice Chair and that this issue had been rectified in concurrence with IIPRC Bylaws.  



 3

Representative Kennedy noted that he had also been reappointed as a member of the Committee and this 
concluded the update of the Legislative Committee. 
 
Commissioner Cline thanked Representative Kennedy for his comments.  Commissioner Cline asked if there 
were any comments for the Legislative Committee.  Hearing none, Commissioner Cline proceeded to the next 
item on the Agenda, the Report of the Communications Committee and asked Commissioner Kim Holland, 
Oklahoma, to provide this report.   
 
Commissioner Holland noted that the Communications Committee met via teleconference with the Industry 
Advisory Committee, the IIPRC Staff and the NAIC Communications Staff on November 21, 2008 to review 
general outreach and marketing plans as well as specific goals to increase product filings with the Compact.  
Commissioner Holland began provided a thorough review of each of the plans that were discussed during this 
meeting.  Commissioner Holland commented that the Industry Advisory Committee stressed the continued 
importance of having the Compact represented during industry events.  Commissioner Holland noted that during 
the meeting, the Industry Advisory Committee provided comment on how the Compact should conduct more 
specific webinars, in addition to the generalized webinars which have occurred throughout the year.  
Commissioner Holland noted that specific webinar sessions will negate the misperceptions that derive from the 
industry and from members of the Commission and that this will provide companies with specific information 
on the various products that are available.  Commissioner Holland further commented that the Industry Advisory 
Committee, the Communications Committee and the IIPRC Staff will conduct customer satisfaction surveys in 
order to determine any changes that may be necessary in the filing process.  Commissioner Holland noted that 
the Industry Advisory Committee and the Communications Committee have agreed to meet on a regular basis to 
review various outreach claims as the IIPRC progresses in its next operational phase moving into 2009.  
Commissioner Holland expressed her appreciation to the members of the Industry Advisory Committee for the 
their participation in the teleconference that was held on November 21 and stated that the meeting was very 
effective in its ability to provide viewpoints of what outreach elements were effective and which ones needed 
improvement.   
 
Commissioner Cline asked if there were any questions for Commissioner Holland.  Hearing none, 
Commissioner Cline asked if there was a motion to adopt the report of the Communications Committee.  
Commissioner Holland made the motion and Commissioner Jim Long, North Carolina, made the second.  
Commissioner Cline asked if there were further discussions.  Hearing none, the adoption of the report of the 
Communications Committee was approved by a unanimous voice vote.   
 
Commissioner Cline then turned to the next item on the Agenda, which was a report of the Finance Committee.  
Commissioner Cline asked Director Frohman, Nebraska, to make the report of the Finance Committee.  Director 
Frohman noted that the Finance Committee met on November 12, 2008 for the purpose of initiating the review 
of the IIPRC financial statements on a quarterly basis as was decided by the Committee during the drafting of 
the IIPRC Budget to assess the IIPRC budgetary needs moving forward into 2009.  Director Frohman explained 
that the financial needs of the IIPRC are still evolving as the Compact is still in start-up operation mode and the 
Finance Committee will continue to make recommendations throughout the year in following the progress of the 
IIPRC.  Director Frohman noted that under the Service Agreement, with the NAIC and IIPRC, the NAIC 
Finance Department will continue to assist in compiling information that is necessary for the financial quarterly 
statements.  Director Frohman stated that there were no recommendations at this time regarding budgetary needs 
of the IIPRC.  Director Frohman noted that the Finance Committee discussed proposing amendments to the 
Terms and Procedures for IIPRC Filing Fees.  Director Frohman stated that is the proposed amendments were 
documented in the Memo that was distributed in advance of the Management Committee meeting.  Director 
Frohman then noted that there is a need for a limited registration fee for small or regional company filers who 
file five (5) or less states throughout the course of an annual registration period.  Director Frohman further noted 
that there is also a need for a limited state per filing fee for these companies which will require a reduced state 
per filing fee.  Director Frohman noted that the Finance Committee will have additional discussions on these 
proposed amendments and will notice them out for public comment.  Director Frohman made a proposal in 
which she suggested that companies should receive incentives for submitting their 2009 IIPRC Annual 



 4

Registration fees earlier within the preceding year.  This proposed amendment would give discounts to 
companies that file early and may encourage prospective companies to become members of the Compact.  
Director Frohman noted that this proposal is being developed by the Finance Committee for consideration 
before the end of the year.  Director Frohman then asked if there were any questions regarding the report of the 
Finance Committee.   
 
Commissioner Cline thanked the Finance Committee for all of their hard work during one of the most 
challenging times and noted that the IIPRC is currently accepting 2009 Annual Registration Fees.  
Commissioner Cline commented that the receipt of early Annual Registration Fees is the fastest method for 
collecting these fees from companies.  Commissioner Cline noted that in the long-run, this methodology will 
allow the Compact to become a self-supporting organization through the receipt of filing fees in addition to 
annual registration fees.   
 
Commissioner Cline asked if there were any questions for Director Frohman.  Representative Kennedy 
commented that he whole heartedly agreed with Commissioner Cline and also agreed with the Finance 
Committee on the early collection of Annual Registration Fees.  Representative Kennedy stated that the limited 
registration fees will encourage more companies to get involved with the Compact.   
 
Commissioner Cline asked if there was a motion to adopt the report of the Finance Committee.  Commissioner 
Jim Long, North Carolina, made the motion to adopt the report of the Finance Committee; and Commissioner 
Holland seconded the motion.  Commissioner Cline asked if there were further discussions.  Hearing none, 
report was approved by a unanimous voice vote.   
 
Commissioner Cline then turned to the next item on the Agenda, a report of the Technology Committee.  
Commissioner Cline asked Commissioner Voss to provide the report of the Technology Committee.   
 
Commissioner Voss noted that on November 17, 2008, the Technology Committee met with the IIPRC Office to 
review the IIPRC technology requirements – both short and long term.  Commissioner Voss noted that the 
requirements were detailed in a Memo that was distributed in advance of the Management Committee meeting 
and that the requirements were based a “back office systems” survey which was conducted earlier in the year.  
Commissioner Voss explained that the purpose of this survey was to gather information about the assessment of 
technology requirements from state insurance departments for current practices within technology support areas.  
Commissioner Voss noted that the Memo provides background on four (4) key areas of technology 
requirements:  SERFF functionality for Compact pages; Member State Filing Fees; “Back Office” Management; 
and Interface with Member States.  Commissioner Voss pointed out that the short-term technology 
enhancements of these four (4) key areas should be implemented within the next six (6) months and noted that 
the long-term enhancements should be implemented over the next three (3) years.  Commissioner Voss stated 
that this Memo will be exposed on the IIPRC website for public comment and that a public hearing will follow 
for a public comment period.  Commissioner Voss commented that the Technology Committee will work 
together with the IIPRC and the NAIC to implement the technology enhancements upon approval by the 
Management Committee.  Commissioner Voss then thanked all of the states who participated in the “back office 
systems” survey and also thanked the IIPRC Office for their hard work in facilitating the survey and for 
compiling the results.  Commissioner Voss asked for any questions regarding the report of the Technology 
Committee.   
 
Hearing none, Commissioner Cline asked if there was a motion to adopt the report of the Technology 
Committee.  Commissioner Dilweg, made the motion to adopt the report of the Technology Committee; and 
Commissioner Long seconded the motion.  Commissioner Cline asked if there were further discussions.  
Hearing none, the report of the Technology Committee was approved by unanimous voice vote.   
 
Commissioner Cline then turned to the next item on the Agenda, the report of the Rulemaking Committee.  
Commissioner Cline asked Commissioner Thabault, Vermont to provide the report of the Rulemaking 
Committee.    



 5

 
Commissioner Thabault stated that the Rulemaking Committee continues to do its work in drafting the 
necessary rules and preparing for upcoming challenges.  Commissioner Thabault reported that the Committee is 
considering the draft for a rule authorizing the self-certification of products and advertisements, other than Long 
Term Care advertising.  Ohio, Virginia and Vermont are tasked with the self-certification rule, and have 
circulated a draft with the assistance of Charlie Rapacciuolo, IIPRC Development Consultant.  Commissioner 
Thabault noted that another item on the Rulemaking Work Agenda is to establish a procedure for filing, 
reviewing, and approving or denying rate filings for disability income and long-term care insurance products.   
Commissioner Thabault explained that the details of such a procedure will depend on whether it is decided that 
the Commission shall review and approve or disapprove initial as well as subsequent rates for long-term care 
and disability insurance products.  Commissioner Thabault further explained that the progression of this rule 
will coincide with the Product Standards Committee’s review of the standard for Disability Insurance products 
and Long-Term Care Insurance products and Long-Term Care Advertising.  Commissioner Thabault 
commented that the Rulemaking Committee is cognizant of the ongoing concerns which have been expressed by 
the Industry Advisory Committee regarding product filings with regard to the “Mix and Match” provision.  
Commissioner Thabault stated that the Rulemaking Committee was instrumental in working with members of 
the Commission to address the needs and interests of its Members, and members of the Legislative, Industry 
Advisory, and Consumer Advisory Committees.  Commissioner Thabault noted that the key issue is to the 
extent to which companies could use existing products which have already been approved at state level; with a 
few products approved by the Commission.  Commissioner Thabault noted that in 2007, when the provision of 
“Mix and Match” was adopted, industry representatives expressed their satisfaction with the provision in which 
a two (2) year timeframe was allotted following the adoption of all Uniform Standards.  Commissioner Thabault 
further noted that industry representatives are now concerned with the two (2) year timeframe of the “Mix and 
Match” process, as companies are reluctant to spend resources for the development of new Uniform Standards 
than they are with having state-approved products that they still want to continue to use.  Commissioner 
Thabault stated that the Rulemaking Committee met on November 11, 2008 and is willing to discuss the “Mix 
and Match” rule.  Commission Thabault noted that there are only 36 companies that have registered with the 
Compact.  Commissioner Thabault noted that in Vermont alone there are approximately 350 companies that are 
licensed to submit long-term care and disability income products.  Commissioner Thabault concluded her report 
of the Rulemaking Committee.   
 
Commissioner Cline asked if there were any questions regarding the report of the Rulemaking Committee.  
Commissioner Holland asked if there could be further discussion for the recommendation of the Committee to 
discuss the “Mix and Match” issue.  Commissioner Thabault commented that the Rulemaking Committee is 
willing to revisit the “Mix and Match” rule with the approval of the Management Committee to get further 
direction on how to proceed with the issues surrounding the “Mix and Match” rule with regard to the concerns 
raised by the Industry Advisory Committee.   
 
Commissioner Cline called on Dennis Herchel, Massachusetts Mutual.  Mr. Herchel stated that it is important to 
take down the barriers that may pose fear to companies being able to use the Compact with regard to the “Mix 
and Match” process.  Mr. Herchel commented that when companies come out with a new product, they expect 
to be able to include this product in their portfolio for future use.  Mr. Herchel further commented that the 
Industry Advisory Committee has never found the Compact to not be useful.   
 
Director Mary Jo Hudson, from the Ohio Department of Insurance, commented that it is cumbersome to have 
company’s undecided on whether or not to use “Mix and Match” products.  Director Hudson expressed the 
importance of Member States communicating with their staff—to find ways to help the market push efficiencies 
with the Compact and to look at how to “take the fence down” so that competition will come to play.   
 
Commissioner Holland commented that the Oklahoma Department of Insurance would support a relief on the 
“Mix and Match” process.  Commissioner Holland stated that there is a need for increased filings and agreed 
with the comments made by Director Hudson.  Commissioner Holland stated that it is appropriate to revisit 
“Mix and Match” issues on an ongoing basis in order to ensure increased filings.   



 6

 
Commissioner Cline stated that the Rulemaking Committee needs support in revisiting “Mix and Match” issues 
and in analyzing the comments received by the Industry Advisory Committee.  Commissioner Cline stated that 
the barriers and problems surrounding “Mix and Match” issues need to be resolved in order to satisfy the states 
and the industry.  Commissioner Cline advised that the Management Committee has the authority to appoint 
subcommittees to address these issues and as such, Commissioner Cline believed that the expertise of the 
Product Standards Committee and the Technology Committee together with the Rulemaking Committee will 
provide better support in revisiting “Mix and Match” issues.  Commissioner Thabault stated that she would 
accept the support of such subcommittees and that this would be welcomed.  Commissioner Thabault noted that 
the Rulemaking Committee is prepared to move forward in addressing “Mix and Match” issues and welcomed 
the other Committees support.  Commissioner Cline stated that the three (3) Committees, that is the 
Rulemaking, Product Standards and Technology Committees would provide additional assistance as these 
Committees were more involved with this process.   
 
Brendan Bridgeland, from the Center for Insurance Research, commented that he opposes the open-end “Mix 
and Match” process with regard to the elimination of the two (2) year timeframe.  Mr. Bridgeland expressed 
how he in fact would have entirely opposed the “Mix and Match” rule when it was first introduced if not for the 
addition of the two (2) year timeframe.  Mr. Bridgeland commented that the Compact must be kept as an 
Interstate Compact in the way it was designed to be—a national instrumentality.   
 
Miriam Krol, ACLI and member of the Industry Advisory Committee, remarked that there may be a six (6) to 
nine (9) month delay as to when the filings will increase and there is no guarantee that the filings will come in.  
Ms. Krol did note that there are some companies who are sitting back and watching the for the outcome before 
filing with the IIPRC.  Ms. Krol indicated that holding the companies at ransom will not generate filings and 
that there are a few other pieces involved (i.e. 2001 CSO filings) and this is not necessarily the only issue.  
 
Commissioner Cline asked if there was a motion to adopt the report of the Rulemaking Committee.  Don Beatty, 
Virginia, made the motion and Commissioner Holland seconded the motion.  Commissioner Michie, Utah, 
asked if there will be a subcommittee appointed to assist the Rulemaking Committee.  Commissioner Cline 
replied that it may be best to have joint meetings of the Technology, Product Standards and Rulemaking 
Committees to address the “Mix and Match” issue.  The Report of the Rulemaking Committee was approved by 
unanimous voice vote.  
 
Commissioner Cline then proceeded to the next item on the Agenda, the Report of the Product Standards 
Committee.   Commissioner Cline asked Sara Waitt to provide this report.   Ms. Waitt reported that the Product 
Standards Committee has a brief report to make and would also recommend four (4) Uniform Standards be 
initiated for the public rulemaking process.  Ms. Waitt noted that six (6) Uniform Standards were adopted by the 
Commission in October which will become effective in February, bringing the available standards total to 49.  
Ms. Waitt stated that once the suite of annuity benefit features are completed, the next drafting priority will be 
drafting group life and annuity standards.   Ms. Waitt further noted that the NAIC Working Group has already 
started on group life, and has stepped up its annuity schedule to allow the group to finish the individual products 
and begin on group products.   Ms. Waitt thanked the members of the NAIC Working Group for their work.  
Ms. Waitt explained that while the NAIC Working Group is working on the drafts, the Product Standards 
Committee intends to develop policy recommendations on group products and rate filing for the Management 
Committee to consider.  Ms. Waitt noted that the group survey results will be distributed shortly and that the 
Committee is working on drafting a survey regarding state filing requirements for Long Term Care and 
disability income products.  Ms. Waitt stated that the Committee is looking at whether only initial rate filings or 
both initial and revised rate filings should be received by the Commission.  Ms. Waitt continued, the Committee 
plans to refer this issue to the Management Committee in January.  Ms. Waitt noted that the Product Standards 
Committee will begin reviewing the standards for Long Term Care policies, which have already been developed 
by the NAIC Working Group.  Ms. Waitt explained that the Committee would like to recommend that the 
Management Committee initiate the rulemaking process for the following standards: Bonus Benefits for 
Deferred Variable Annuities; Index-Linked Crediting Feature for Non-Variable Adjustable Life Insurance; 



 7

Intermediate Period Endowment Benefits; and Amendment to Core Standards for Deferred Variable Annuities.  
Ms. Waitt reported that a transmittal memo was distributed as advance materials for the Management 
Committee meeting.  Ms. Waitt concluded her report.   
 
Ken Libertoff, Consumer Advisory Committee member and Executive Director of Vermont Mental Health 
Association, raised the issue of mental health parity and having it incorporated into the long term care and 
possibly the disability income standards now that there is federal legislation.  Ms. Waitt replied that the Product 
Standards Committee will consider this issue and have received the letter from Vermont on this issue.  Mr. 
Libertoff stated that the time is over for stigma and discussion.  Mr. Libertoff noted that it is time to end limits 
and exclusions on mutual health coverage and this will affect all of us.  Ms. Krol noted that the legislation does 
not apply to long term care and disability income standards.  Ms. Krol noted that the Industry Advisory 
Committee believes that an individual should be offered many levels of coverage to meet consumer needs; this 
is not one size fits all.  Ms. Krol noted that it is very expensive to allow for complete parity.   Mr. Libertoff 
replied that Vermont costs have actually been lowered.  Commissioner Dilweg remarked that this issue is still in 
flux on the federal level and that they are working with the Department of Labor and others to put this in its 
proper place.  Commissioner Holland noted that all the Commissioners struggle with the costs of the mandated 
coverage.  Commissioner Holland asked how do we guard against adverse selection in the absence of a mandate.  
Ms. Krol replied that the industry would not object to requirement to offer the coverage, but would object to the 
requirement to cover all.  Commissioner Cline moved that the Product Standards Committee review and 
consider these comments made regarding the long term care and disability income standards. 
 
Commissioner Cline asked for a motion to adopt the report of the Product Standards Committee.  Commissioner 
Dilweg made the motion to adopt the report of the Product Standards Committee; and Director Hudson 
seconded the motion.  Commissioner Cline asked if there were further discussion.  Hearing none, the report of 
the Product Standards Committee was approved by a unanimous voice vote.   
 
Commissioner Cline then addressed the next item on the Agenda, which was to consider the adoption of the 
Management Committee Meeting Minutes from the October 27, 2008 meeting of the Management Committee.  
Commissioner Cline noted that Karyn Onyeneho, IIPRC Administrative Assistant, completed the Minutes which 
were provided to the members of the Management Committee.  Commissioner Cline noted that the Management 
Committee received comments from Mr. Beatty which had been incorporated into the minutes.  Commissioner 
Cline asked if there were any additional edits to the Management Committee Meeting Minutes.  Hearing none, 
Commissioner Cline asked for a motion to adopt the minutes of the Management Committee Meeting. Mr. 
Beatty made a motion to adopt the Management Committee Meeting Minutes; and Commissioner Thabault 
seconded the motion.  Commissioner Cline asked if there were further discussion.  Hearing none, the adoption 
of the Management Committee Meeting Minutes was approved by a unanimous voice vote.  Commissioner 
Cline noted that the minutes would be posted to the IIPRC website following the Winter National Meeting.   
 
Commissioner Cline then turned to Sara Bamford, IIPRC Operations Manager, to address the next item on the 
Agenda, which was an Operational Update of the IIPRC.  Ms. Bamford noted that the final product filing 
determination, under the IIPRC Product Filing Rule parameters, was still being made within an average of 31 
days as of November 2008.  Ms. Bamford further noted that there are currently 49 Uniform Standards which are 
available for product filing use with the IIPRC.  Ms. Bamford stated that since the 2007 operational start-up of 
the IIPRC, there have been 134 products that have been approved to date.  Ms. Bamford thanked the companies 
who have filed with the IIPRC and noted that the IIPRC has repeat product filers and that the IIPRC Office 
looks forward to giving support to new companies who will join the Compact.  Ms. Bamford noted that in 
reference to the filings received, that these filings have spanned from a single-state submission to those which 
included all Compact States.  Ms. Bamford further noted that the average number of Member States selected per 
filing is 23  Ms. Bamford then concluded the IIPRC Operational Update with a reference to the 2009 IIPRC 
Management Committee meeting schedule, which was provided to the members of the Commission, and noted 
the dates of all forthcoming Management Committee meetings next year with the exclusion of holidays and 
National Meetings. 
 



 8

Commissioner Cline thanked Ms. Bamford for all of her good work and for her continuing efforts to support the 
members of the Compact.  Commissioner Cline then addressed the next item on the Agenda, which were any 
other matters.  Commissioner Cline stated that there is a resolution to be considered for adoption to authorize the 
IIPRC to seek a private letter ruling with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) under Section 115 of the IRS Code 
of 1986.  Commissioner Cline stated that this special ruling would exempt the Commission’s income from 
taxation and noted that this rule derived from the review conducted by the firm of Kelly Drye, IIPRC’s retained 
outside counsel, of the Compact.  The Compact is an instrumentality of the member states and functions as an 
essential governmental entity.  Commissioner Cline noted that Karen Schutter, IIPRC Interim Executive 
Director, was prepared to answer any legal questions to the proposed resolution.   
 
Michael Lovendusky, ACLI, asked if a copy of the resolution was available to the members of the Commission.  
Commissioner Cline noted that this information can be made available as it was inadvertently not provided as 
advance materials.  Mr. Lovedusky asked if it was the intention to approve the resolution during the meeting and 
Commissioner Cline replied affirmatively.  Mr. Lovendusky then made an objection to approve the resolution 
and stated that the ACLI would like to have the record kept open for further analysis and discussion. 
  
Commissioner Cline asked if there were any questions regarding the adoption for the resolution to authorize the 
IIPRC to seek a private letter ruling with the IRS under Section 115 of the IRS Code of 1986.  Hearing none, 
Commissioner Cline asked if there was a motion to adopt the resolution.  Director Hudson made a motion to 
adopt the resolution; and Commissioner Long seconded the motion.  Commissioner Cline asked if there were 
further discussions.  Hearing none, the resolution to authorize the tax filings was approved by a unanimous 
voice vote.  Commissioner Cline noted that the Management Committee will ensure that the resolution is 
prepared for review by all interested parties.   
 
Commissioner Cline then addressed another resolution to be considered for adoption, which was to change the 
signature authority on the IIPRC bank account.  Commissioner Cline stated that the signature of Frances 
Arricale, former IIPRC Executive Director, should be removed as an authorizing signature and replaced with 
that of Commissioner Cline during the transition period.  Commissioner Cline noted that the signature of Brady 
Kelley, from the NAIC, also appears on the IIPRC bank account and should remain as an authorized signature to 
ensure that payroll compensations and any other expenses will continue to be met in a timely manner.  
Commissioner Cline asked if there was a motion to adopt the resolution to change the authorized signature on 
the IIPRC bank account.  Commissioner Long made a motion to adopt the resolution; and Commissioner 
Dilweg seconded the motion.  Commissioner Cline asked if there were further discussions.  Hearing none, the 
adoption of the resolution to change the authorized signature on the IIPRC bank account was approved by a 
unanimous voice vote.   
 
Commissioner Cline thanked everyone for their participation and noted that Commissioner Long will no longer 
serve as a member of the Commission following the meeting.  Commissioner Cline noted that Commissioner 
Long had been a long-serving Commissioner and was the initial Member of the Compact.  Commissioner Cline 
further noted that Commissioner Long had the important and difficult task of carrying the Bylaws Committee 
through the development and operation process of the IIPRC.  Commissioner Cline thanked Commissioner 
Long for all of his hard work and for his great support in helping the Compact. 
 
Commissioner Long thanked Commissioner Cline and noted that it had been an honor serving as a member of 
the Commission.   
 
Commissioner Cline asked if there were any other matters to come before the Management Committee.  Hearing 
none, Commissioner Cline noted that the full Commission meeting will follow the adjournment of the 
Management Committee meeting.  Mr. Beatty made a motion to adjourn the Management Committee; and 
Director Hudson seconded the motion.  The Management Committee was adjourned by a unanimous voice vote. 
 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


